TOWN OF PINE LEVEL
MINUTES OF
PINE LEVEL PLANNING BOARD MEETING
May 22", 2025 @ 6:30

MEETING INFORMATION

The Pine Level Planning Board met on May 22", 2025 at 6:30 p.m. at the Pine Level Town Hall. The meeting was called to
order by Chairman Randy Jones.

1. CALLTO ORDER/ROLL CALL

v RANDY JONES X TONIA HILL

Vv KEVIN KORNEGAY X TAMMY REGISTER

X BERRY GODWIN V. GREG JOHNSON

V FAYE STARLING V SHANE STRICKLAND (ALT 1)
V CECELIA JOYNER

VvV RANDY HOLLOMAN (ALT 1)

V TERRY RAINS (ALT 2)

vV SAMUEL HEUERTZ (ALT 3)

STAFF PRESENT - Town Clerk Ashley Willoughby, Planning and Zoning Director Scottie Hayes, Administrative
Assistant Danielle Lanier

OTHERS PRESENT Debra Heuertz, Andrew Hodge, Peter Perchak

2. APPROVAL/ AMENDMENT TO AGENDA

MOTION- To Approve Agenda- Kevin Kornegay
SECOND - Randy Holloman
VOTE - UNANIMOUS

3. APPROVAL OF AMENDED MINUTES FROM MARCH 27™, 2025 MEETING
MOTION- To accept amended minutes- Shane Strickland
SECOND- Faye Starling
VOTE — UNANIMOUS




4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM April 24, 2025
MOTION- To accept minutes- Kevin Kornegay
SECOND- Samuel Heuertz
VOTE — UNANIMOUS

5. REZONING REQUEST-PARCEL #12M12065

The request for annexation was submitted before the request for rezoning. Mr. Randy Jones asked why
would the Planning Board recommend rezoning of a property without it being in the Pine level district. Ms. Ashley
Willoughby explained that according to General Statues, a municipality is allowed to review a rezoning request
after the submission of an annexation request, so it may be reviewed and brought before the Town Board. It was
mentioned that the public hearing for the annexation is to be held at the June 9" meeting. Ms. Willoughby stated
this is to allow the property to have proper time to be vested and reviewed. Mr. Jones stated it would only be
recommended on the contingency that the property gets annexed he also expressed his opinion of how it was
improper to, “put the cart in front of the horse”. Mr. Andrew Hodge stated that the parcel needs to be rezoned
from AR & GB to RH and not RS as stated on the application. Mr. Hodge stated RS (Residential Subdivision) on the
paperwork, was a mistake. Mr. Jones asked why the parcel needs to be rezoned to RH (Single and Multi-Family
Residential). Mr. Kevin Kornegay asked about the future land use plan, Ms. Willoughby stated this parcel was not
in the ETJ (Extraterritorial Jurisdiction) nor in the City Limits of Pine Level, but the zoning around the parcel is
Commercial and RMH (Mobile Home Residential) zoning. Mr. Hodge stated it is for the intent of duplexes. There
was discussion about the zoning what the difference between apartments, townhouses and duplexes were. Mr.
Shane Strickland asked when the Board would see the annexation request, Ms. Ashley Willoughby answered that
the public hearing is set for the June 9" Town Board meeting.

MOTION- To recommend approval to Town Council, upon annexation of this parcel, that it be rezoned to RH
based on the surrounding properties and different zonings in that area. -Kevin Kornegay

SECOND- Terry Rains

Mr. Jones reiterated the motion on the floor that upon annexation the Planning Board recommends it be rezoned.
It was discussed that there is a 30-day notice for zoning and that this rezoning, the Town Board would call for a
public hearing at the June 9th meeting. Mr. Samuel Heuertz stated that by his definition, it is a major subdivision
due to the fact that the documents stated, for example, five or more homes, five acres and to Mr. Heuertz's
interpretation, it makes this subject to the moratorium. Mr. Jones stated that the Board is only discussing the
zoning not what will be built. Mr. Heuertz mentioned that will be something Mr. Hodge will have to be concerned
with at a later time. Mr. Jones thanked Mr. Hodge for letting the Board know what the intent would be, even
though he didn’t have to divulge that information. It was stated that on the application it was RS but was intended
to be RH and the motion doesn’t need to be amended for it states the recommended approval zoning be changed

to RH.
VOTE - UNANIMOUS

6. TABLED ITEMS- SIDEWALK, CURB AND GUTTER ORDINANCE MODIFICATION
The difference between this proposed change and the one introduced in April’'s meeting was the
verbiage concerning residential and anyone wanting to build on an individual lot would be required to provide a
sidewalk. It was discussed how different zones and developments would interpret the amendment to the UDO.
It was said that the preferred way is to have the developer put sidewalks in before any homes are built.




MOTION- To recommend approval to the Town Board of 409.2 as it is written to change in the UDO- Kevin

Kornegay

SECOND- Shane Strickland

Mr. Hayes asked the Board if they wanted to add that (sidewalks) have to be down before the Final Plat. Mr. Jones
stated that it will be on the Preliminary. Mr. Hayes asked if the sidewalk has to be on the ground before the final
plat is signed off. Ms. Willoughby asked the Board if they would like to put that in as an amendment at a later time
for the major subdivision approval process. It was mentioned that can be for a later amendment.

VOTE - UNANIMOUS

409.1 Curb and Gutter: Curb and gutter shall be provided where deemed necessary by the
Board of Commissioners with advice from the Planning Board, Street Maintenance

Superintendent, and/or the Town's consulting engineer in order to provide adequate
drainage, or because high traffic volumes, soil conditions, or other similar conditions or

special problems exist.

409.2 Sidewalks: Al-subdivisions All proposed plans including but not limited to non-residential
developments, mixed-use developments. all major subdivision including multi-family,
single-family, townhomes, duplexes, and any residential developments with five (5) or
more dwelling units within a single parcel which requires extended driveways and/or
creation of streets, and additional parking shall be required within the Pine Level town
limits and ETJ shall to provide sidewalks, curb and gutter. Sidewalks shall be required at
minimum on one side of the street, but sidewalks shall not be required ea within the cul-
de-sacs terminal where provided. All other residential developments shall be required to
provide sidewalks to connect to any existing public sidewalks that abuts to the property
Such sidewalks shall be constructed to a minimum width of five (5) feet, and shall consist
of minimum thickness of four (4) inches of concrete. Within residential developments
where curb and gutter is provided, a four (4) foot vegetative strip with grass plantings
shall separate the sidewalk from the curb. The abutting property owner or a
homeowner's association shall be responsible for mowing the vegetative strip. Where
curb and gutter is not provided, the drainage ditch or swale shall be placed between the
sidewalk and the road. All sidewalks shall be placed in the right-of-way, unless the
development is platted as a group development. Sidewalks shall consist of a minimum of
six (6) inches of concrete at driveway crossings. All sidewalks shall comply with the

Amencan with Dlsabmtles Act. Ihe—Rlannmg—Bea#d—ma%gmm—a{%eptmﬂ—te%}s

7. NEW BUSINESS
Mr. Heuertz mentioned at the last meeting, Ms. Willoughby asked the board to see if any of the UDO

needed any revisions. Mr. Heuertz suggested that section 304.3, preliminary plat submission review for Major




Subdivisions and the next section is 304.4 final Plat review for major subdivisions, Mr. Heuertz explained he felt
there to be a gap of information between the two sections. There is a lot of things that must occur between the
preliminary and final plats for example the stormwater reports etc. Mr. Heuertz suggested that a check list be
implemented for clarity of expectations. Mr. Jones stated the only danger in the checklist is leaving something
out. Mr. Hayes explained the steps, Construction plans come in, water system, sewer system, storm water
study that gets sent off to the Towns engineer currently is TRC. Mr. Heuertz reiterated there should be a
paragraph or so, in between the two sections due to the fact it is basically a timeline explain the intermediate
steps so it flows in a logical sequence. It was mentioned about the new TIA requirement Ms. Willoughby stated
the public hearing for that is set for July.

The proposed Bill 765 House Bill was discussed and the intent of this bill. Mr. Jones stated he has spoken
to several politicians about this bill. According to Mr. Jones the summary of this bill is the town’s will not have
a say as to what or how anything is built. No matter what the Town'’s ordinance or Master Plan is. This is all
being done under the pretense of affordable housing. Mr. Jones encouraged the Board to read through the bill
email the representative about the disapproval of this proposed bill.

Chairman Randy Jones informed the Board of his resignation from his current position from the Planning
Board. Mr. Jones stated he hopes he had made a difference in the Town and County serving on the Board. Mr.
Jones went on to state his love for Pine Level and wanted members to, “remember, we are no longer in a small
town, but we are still the best little town in North Carolina.” Mr. Jones further stated he wished the best for
the Board and the future growth of Pine Level he thanked all the Board members for allowing him to serve with
them as they are a very special group of volunteers and he has enjoyed his time on the Board.

MOTION- To accept Randy Jones’ resignation- Greg Johnson
SECOND- Kevin Kornegay
VOTE - UNANIMOUS

ADJOURNMENT:
There being no further business to discuss, Mr. Greg Johnson made the motion to adjourn. Mr. Shane

Strickland seconded the motion. Motion passed by a unanimous vote. The meeting adjourned at 8:00
p.m.

Danielle Lanier, Administrative Assistant Kevin Kornegay, Chairman



